Serial: 153059



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

No. 2008-KP-01699

EDGAR PATTON

APPELLANT

-VS-

ţ

ŧ.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

.............



APPELLEE

DEFENDANT'S APPELLANT BRIEF

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned pro se appellant certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of this case. These representations are made in order that the Justices of the Supreme Court and/or the Judges of the Court of appeals may evaluate possible disqualifications of recusal:

Marion County District Attorney 500 Courthouse Square, Suite 3 Columbia, MS 39429

Hon. R.I. Prichard III Circuit Court Judge P.O. Box 0488 Purvis, MS. 39475-0488

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

The Appellant, Edgar Patton, assigns as error, ten issues arising from the Trial Court:

- 1. Fatally defective Indictment and erroneous denial of Appellant's Motions to Dismiss.
- 2. Whether the Trial Court denied Appellants Sixth Amendment Right to Counsel.
- 3. Whether the trial Court erred by allowing the Prosecution to commit Discovery Violations.
- 4. Whether the Trial Court erred by not Overruling Appellant's Motions until the very day of trial.
- 5. Whether the Trial Court erred by not calling Albert Lee Preston, and not allowing the Appellant to call Preston, who was the lead investigator.
- Whether the Trial Court erred by allowing the Prosecutor to vouch for the witnesses credibility.
- Whether the Trial Court erred in giving the Appearance of Bias in favor of the Prosecution, particularly during Appellant's cross examination of Isodore Newsom and Pricilla Newsom.
- Whether the jury verdict finding Appellant guilty was against overwhelming weight of the evidence.
- 9. Whether the Trial Court erred during jury instructions.

÷

÷

:

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On September 26, 2006, the Appellant Edgar Patton, (hereinafter "Patton"), was indicted in criminal cause K06-0198P on one count of "False Pretense". The Original indictment did not charge "Felony False Pretense" and was never amended to the higher charge of "Felony False Pretense in which carries a more serious penalty if convicted.

On July 26, 2007 Patton filled a number of motions with the Trial Court in this order (1) Motion to sever, (2) Notice of Discovery. (3) Motion for Postponing Trial Date. (4) Notice of Motion To Dismiss. (5) Motion To Dismiss for Failure to State a Claim and Failure to Respond. (6) Motion for Bill of Particulars. (7) Motion To Disqualify Morris Sweatt as ADA in his case. (8) Motion to Dismiss Indictment. All of which was not overruled and given to Patton until the very day of trial.

On August 28, 2008, Patton was convicted of what he assumed to be "Felony False Pretense", not "False Pretense" as the Indictment states, and which was never amended to increase the permissible punishment to "Felony False Pretense". As a result Patton was sentenced to 10 years in prison the maximum sentence for the crime of "felony false pretense".

On September 2, 2008, Patton filed a Motion to Waive Notice of Motions, and Notice of Appeal. He also filed a Motion to Stay sentencing Hearing and Requested and Appeal Bond, and Motion for New Trial. All of which was denied by the Trial Court as premature.

On September 9, 2008 Patton filed a Motion to Vacate Trial Conviction, a Motion for New Trial or Reversal of Judgment all of which were denied by the Trial Court.

On September 30, 2008 Patton filed his Notice of Appeal.

<u>....</u>;

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Appellant argues that he was not put on notice that he was charged with "Felony False Pretense" not "False Pretense" as the Indictment charged him with, resulting in unfair surprise, in the Supreme Court of the United States stated: "to be sufficient and indictment must set forth the essential elements of the offense," further, "(i)t is generally sufficient that an indictment set forth the offense in words of the statue itself, as long as "those words of themselves fully, directly, and expressly, without any uncertainty or ambiguity, set forth all the elements necessary to constitute the offence intended to be punished ".

Additionally, Patton contends that the Indictment was defective and fatally flawed in that it violated his *Fifth Amendment Rights and Fed. R. Crim. P. 7(c) (1)* in that the Indictment lacked sufficient information to prepare double jeopardy defense. Also the Indictment was totally contrary to the evidence presented.

The Appellant argues that the Trial Court lacked Jurisdiction to try his case, in that the Trial Court violated his *Fifth Amendment Right to due process, Rule 28 U.S.C. 1330-1369* and *28 U.S.C. 1441-1452* state: a judgment from the court that did not have subject-matter jurisdiction is forever a nullity. Further subject-matter jurisdiction, personal or territorial jurisdiction and adequate notice are the most fundamental Constitutional requirements for a valid judgment.

The Appellant argues that his Sixth Amendment Rights to council was violated.

The Appellant argues that Trial Court did not call or allowed him to call Detective Albert Lee Preston to the stand since he was the only investigator that originally filed or caused the charge against the Appellant to be filed. The Appellant argues that the Prosecutor vouched for the witness credibility in closing

arguments in front of the jury. In United States v. Rudberg, 122f.3d 1199 (9th Cir. 1997) found reversible error and stated: "a prosecutor vouched for a witness credibility in closing argument."

The Appellant argues the jury verdict finding him guilty was against the overwhelming weight of the evidence. In Cromeans v. State, 261 So. 2d 453 (Miss. 1972); Marr v. State, 248 Miss. 281, 159 So. 2d 167 (1963); and Freeman v. State, supra [228 Miss. 687, 89 So. 2d 716(1956)]. The Court has stated: in per. part "we have further said that we will not set aside a guilty verdict, absent other error, unless it is clearly a result of prejudice, bias or fraud, or is manifestly against the weight of credible evidence." The evidence presented to the Grand Jury is <u>unclear</u> they returned a indictment for a "Crimson" mobile home, when all the evidence that the prosecution presented was for a "Redman" in total contradiction to each other, which indicate there was fraud committed upon the Court.

The Appellant argues that the Trial Court gave the appearance of biasness in favor of the prosecution, particularly during his cross examination of Isodore Newsom and Pricilla Newsom. In *Thompson v. State, 468 So.2d 852, 854 (Miss. 1995),* the Court said:

[It is a matter of common knowledge that jurors...are very susceptible To the influence of the judge...jurors watch his conduct, and give attention to his language, that they may, if possible, ascertain his leaning to one side or the other, which, if known, often largely influence their verdict. He cannot be too careful and guarded in language and conduct in the presence of the jury, to avoid prejudice to either party.]

The Appellant argues he was prejudice beyond repair when the Trial Court waited until the very day of trial to overrule all of his motions.

The Appellant argues he objected during an in-chamber conference, for which there appears to be no record from the Court Reporter. Appellant expressly objected to the jury

i

instruction No. 5 in particularly the last paragraph which reads, " if you find from the

evidence in this case that Edgar Patton did not obtain eight hundred dollars (\$800.00) from Prisicilla Watts Newsom and Isodore Newsom as described above, then you must find Edgar Patton not guilty". Edgar Patton conceded that he did in fact receive \$800.00 but as the evidence3 show it was for his "Redman" mobile home, which in fact the Newsom's took anyway, form his property, in which the Appellant pressed charges against them for Grand Larceny.

<u>ARGUMENT 1</u>

FATALLY DEFECTIVE INDICTMENT AND ERRONEOUS DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S MOTION TO DISMISS

The Circuit Court erred in not dismissing the indictment as a matter of law. In State v. Rogers 123 N.C. App. 359, 473 S.E. 2d 969 (1996) in a unanimous panel in which the judgment was vacated stated in per part: "as a matter of law a person cannot be prosecuted on an indictment for obtaining property by false pretense where the indictment alleges nothing more than the defendant [did intentionally, willfully, designedly with intent to cheat and defraud". In Vince v. State, 844 So. 2d 510 (Miss. App. 2003). The Court ruled: " Because the defect in the indictment in this case was so fundamental and because of the importance to the criminal process of a properly drawn indictment that fully acquaints the defendant with the nature of the accusation brought against him, we note the matter as plain error and conclude that it requires us to reverse Vince's sentence. The indictment against Patton reads as follows: " Edgar Patton did intentionally, willfully, designedly with the intent to cheat and defraud Priscilla Watts Newsom and Isadore Newsom by selling to Priscilla Watts Newsom and Isodore Newsom a 1981 Crimson 14 x 65 trailer bearing serial number ALW12614777 that the defendant did not own and the defendant Edgar Patton did obtain money from the said Priscilla Watts Newsom and Idadore Newsom as payment on said trailer, contrary to and in violation of Section 97-19-39 of the Mississippi Code of 1972, amended, against the peace and dignity of the State of Mississippi. (see R. page 4) this indictment apparently did not take into account that all of the evidence which the indictment allege, but all the facts proved before during and after trial. was for Patton's "Redman" mobile home even all the creditable evidence was the contract, the bill of sale and the sales receipt, all was for a "Redman" (see R. exhibit page, 34, 35 and 36). Under Rule 60(b), (1) and (3) which Patton pressed grand larcenv charges against the Newsom's for stealing his "Redman" mobile home from his property a fact that was withheld and Patton did not learn of until he spoke with Kippy Newsom, Isodore Newsom's nephew, when he was incarcerated at the MWCF for the month after he was convicted of "Felony False Pretense". Patton knew his mobile home had

ţ

been stolen but he did not know who stole it, until Kippy Newsom confirmed that Isodore and Pricilla Newsom did in fact sell the mobile home because they had the "Bill of Sale" that Patton gave them, and he believed they sold the "Redman" to someone who lived in a community call Second Hopewell, which is a neighboring community of Patton. The indictment was a fraud and fraudulently obtained and under which is a direct violation of Rule 60 (1). In Vince v. State, 844 So.2d510 (Miss. App.2003) state in per part: If the State used a document that is false or fraudulent the trial court should have stricken it and not used in support of any motion, for the trial court to do so would be plain error. In Morgan v. State, cite. 966 so 2d 2004 Miss. App. 2007; simply state: "The general Rule is that a trial conviction by jury or a guilty plea waives all defect in the indictment with two exceptions (1). Failure to charge an essential element of a criminal offense and (2). Subject matter jurisdiction. The indictment was absent all of the essential elements of the charge of "False Pretense" it was obtained through fraud upon the Court it violated Rule 60 (b) (1) and (3) which rendered the indictment fatally defective, and with no valid indictment the trial court lacked jurisdiction to sentence Patton. In United States v. Du Bo, 186 F. 3d 1177 (9th Cir. 1999) established the "automatic reversal rule" which rest on three premises: the Court in Du Bo held that, "if properly challenged prior to trial, an indictment's complete failure to recite an essential element of the charged offense is...a fatal flaw requiring dismissal of the indictment. It is further noted that an indictment is the foundation of the criminal due process in which everything done after the indictment is handed down, will control every aspect of the criminal process, thus if the indictment is not valid there can be no valid conviction or sentencing. "186f. 3d at 1179. Further state, "and We support that automatic reversal rule with three premises: 1. Jurisdictional, 2. Omissions, from grand jury indictment, unlike omissions from jury instructions, simply are not susceptible to harmless error review, Du Bo, 186 F. 3d at 1179-80. 3. We expressed desire to give defendants an incentive to bring timely objections. We limited the automatic reversal rule to timely challenges, reasoning that under harmless error review, filing a pretrial motion would be "self defeating" because the very filing of the motion would demonstrate hat the defendant had notice of the missing element." Id, at 1180 n.3.

13.

ţ

÷.

í.

<u>ARGUMENT II</u>

THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN VIOLATING PATTON'S SIXTH AMENDMENT RIGHT TO COUNSEL AND ALLOWING A CRIMINAL DEFENDANT SELF-REPRESENTATION AND HE DID NOT KNOWINGLY, INTELLIGENTLY AND INFORMATIVELY WAIVE HIS RIGHT TO A LAWYER

The Circuit Court erred in allowing a criminal defendant self-representation and he did not knowingly, intelligently and informatively sign or waive his right to a lawyer, where the Court never informed him of the charge against him and misstated or omitted the potential sentence he faced, which in tern violated his Sixth Amendment Right to Counsel and Due Process. In United States v. Foster, 05-50410 the Appellate Court ruled "the court failed to fulfill its obligation to ensure he [Foster] understood the possible penalties." Judge Clifton and Smith concurred in the opinion and further stated "of course, Foster may have correctly understood the charges against him and the potential penalties, but the Government failed to Prove that he did so." In United States v. Cash, 47f. 3d 1083 (11th Cir. 1995) the Court further held defendant could not waive counsel without proper finding by the court." In United States v. Keen, 104f. 3d 1111 (9th Cir. 1996) held " a court did not sufficiently explain to defendant the danger of pro se representation, in United States v. Taylor, 113 f. 3d 1136 (10th Cir. 1997) stated: " the court did not assure a proper waiver of counsel. And further stated: " Plain error is "so basic, so prejudicial, so lacking in its elements that justice cannot have been done[.] In State v. McCastle, 676 F. 2d 995, 1002 (4th Cir.) (footnote omitted), cert denied, 459 U.S. 1018, 74 L. Ed. 2d 513 (1982). Section 15-1242 provides: " a defendant may be permitted at his election to proceed in the trial of his case without the assistance of counsel only after the trial judge makes thorough inquiry and is satisfied that the defendant:

14.

-1- Has been clearly advised of his right to the assistance of counsel, including his right to the assignment of counsel when he is entitled;

-2- Understand and appreciates the consequences of this decision; and

-3- Comprehends the nature of the charges and proceedings and range of permissible punishments he face.

The record is clear, the Trial Court never explain these basic due process rights to Patton. Under Miss. R. Crim. P. 8.05, is even more broad I contains 5 elements that must be followed and made part of the record, in which the trial Judge did not follow. Under a Writ of error Coram Nobis, which is broad ranging, particularly giving cognizance to violation of constitutional rights occurring is criminal trials, and it becomes perrative upon affirmance of conviction in the Mississippi Supreme Court. King v, Cook (1968, ND miss.) 287 F. Supp. 269. in Scott v. State (1966, Miss.) 190 So. 2d 875, appeal after remand (1968, Miss.) 188 So. 2d 239. in which the plea was vacated and remanded for new trial because Scott did not have counsel for his own defense, and had not

competently and intelligently waived the right to counsel.

(see Tran. P. 96, line 15-16), also (Tran. P. 105, line 8-12 and line 27-28) (Tran. P. 106, line 1-19).

<u>ARGUMENT III</u>

TRIAL COURT ERRED BY ALLOWING THE PROSECUTION TO COMMIT DISCOVERY VIOLATIONS

The Trial Court erred during discovery by allowing the prosecution to withhold exculpatory evidence, in United States v. Alzate, 47 f. 3d 1103 (11th Cir. 1995) found reversible error and stated: "a prosecutor withheld exculpatory evidence" and vacated Alzate's conviction. Reasoning that the discovery process is an ongoing process for the wheels of justice that are crucial to due process and therefore is not flexible. The prosecution withheld the fact that the Newsom's had in fact purchased the "Crimson" trailer from Patrina Harvey and did not disclose this fact to Patton and mentioned throughout testimony that Newsom had done so, and also the pictures offered by the State was after defacto evidence in which the prosecution had taken after the trailer had been moved to its new location and not taken at the address at the time of the controversy. This in tern prejudiced Patton beyond repair, further the prosecution never went to Patton's mobile home located on his property to take pictures, get serial numbers or even get the name brand of Patton's mobile home, which by all of the witnesses' testimony offered by the state and by Patton stated that there was in fact a beige and brown mobile home on Patton's property, and no one took the time and just get the basicinformation from Patton's mobile home, which would have settled this matter in its entirety this is and was a undisputed fact. In United States v. Barnes, 49 f. 3d 1144 (6th Cir. 1995) held reversible error and stated: "request for discovery of extraneous evidence created a continuing duty to disclose." In United States v. Foster, 129 f. 3d 949 (6th Cir. 1997) held reversible error and stated: "exculpatory grand jury testimony should have been admitted at trial." In fact Patton requested the grand jury proceeding and the district attorney's office did not object, in fact the trial court told the district attorney to "give the defendant whatever he requested and whatever they had." In United States v. Flores Chapa, 48 f. 3d 156 (5th Cir. 1995) held reversible error and stated: "the prosecutor referred to evidence that was not

disclosed to Patton, the fact that the Newsom's had paid \$2,000.00 for the "Crimson" trailer

and that Patrina Harvey did not subtract the \$800.00 that the Newsom's had paid Patton as a down payment for his "Redman" mobile home.

(see Tran. P. 156, line 1-16), also (Tran. P. 160, line 19-24, P. 161, line 4-18) see (Tran. P. 110, line 16-28) see (tran. P. 134, line 20-29) see (tran. P. 135, line 1-2)

r

t :

1.7

Ł

i

į

f

ARGUMENT IV

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY NOT OVERRULING PATTON'S MOTIONS UNTIL THE VERY DAY OF TRIAL

On July 26, 2007 Patton filed a number of motions with the Trial Court in this order (1) Motion to Sever, (2) Notice of Discovery (3) Notice of Motion to Dismiss (4) Motion Dismiss (5) Motion for Bill of Particulars (6) Motion to Disqualify Morris Sweatt as ADA in his case (7) Motion to dismiss Indictment, all of which was not overruled and given to Patton until the very day of trial, which prejudice Patton beyond repair. (see Rec. p. 40-41).

÷

ł

Ì.

<u>ARGUMENT V</u>

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY NOT CALLING ALBERT LEE PRESTON AND NOT ALLOWING PATTON TO CALL PRESTON WHO WAS THE LEAD INVESTIGATOR IN THIS CASE

The Trial Court erred by not calling and not allowing Patton to call Albert Lee Preston the lead investigator for the Columbia Police Department who according to William Billingsley who at the time worked with the Marion County Sheriff's Office and claimed through out his testimony that Preston worked the entire file and gave it to him to turn over to the District Attorney's Office. In Swhlewitz v. United States, 169 f. 3d 1003 (6th Cir. 1996) held reversible error and stated: "defendant could exposed bias of witness involved in investigation, had he been allowed to cross examine a key witness." Had Patton been allowed to call Preston to the witness stand or cross he would have exposed Pricilla Newsom and Albert Preston' prior relationship and the bias he had in this case. During side bar Patton extraneously expressed the need to call Preston which was by the state's own admission was the lead investigator and the agent that started this entire process. It is well settled law that the State must assist the Pro se defendant with the procurement of his witness's to be called at trial this is and undisputed fact. And under the Sixth Amendment due process right, the Appellant has compulsory process for obtaining witness's in his favor. The Appellant also named Preston as on of his witnesses.

See (Tran. P. 157, line 26-29, p. 158, line 1-29, p. 159, line 1-10).

19.

ARGUMENT VI

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED BY ALLOWING THE PROSECUTOR TO VOUCH FOR THE WITNESS'S CREDIBILITY

The Trial Court erred by allowing the prosecutor to vouch for a witness credibility in front of the jury. In United States v. Rudberg, 122 f. 3d 1199 (9th Cir. 1997) found reversible error and stated: " a prosecutor vouched for a witness credibility in closing argument." And further stated, "the Court and the District Attorney's office is a branch of public trust and juror's tend to rely upon that trust when their told the weight of that office is saying their witness is trust worthy. During closing the prosecutor remarked that the witness's contradictions with each other was because they all were telling the truth. The fact is that the States star witness Pricilla (Watts) Newsom is a convicted felon, in which she was convicted by the Marion County District Attorney's Office, the very same office that now calls her a credible witness. The trial Court erred by refusing to allow the Appellant to impeach the witness and by allowing the witness to ask questions, such as when the Appellant asked, "have you been convicted of a crime?" and Watts replied with a question, and asked "is that relevant?", and the Trial Court allowed Watts to withhold the fact that she had been convicted of a prior felony, in which the Appellant could have used to impeach the credibility of this star witness. In Carter v. Rafferty, 621 f. Supp. 533 [D.N.J. 1985] in which Judge Sarokin, overturned Carter's conviction and ordered his "immediate release from custody with prejudice." Also the prosecutor should have disclosed during discovery the fact that their star witness was a convicted felon, under Rule 609 (a)(1). See Peterson v. State, 518 So 2d 632 (Miss. 1987), state: "the probative value of a prior conviction outweighs the prejudicial effects, when impeaching a witness.

20.

ź

Rule 609 (a)(2) took the rule a step further by stating, a witness may be impeached when a prior conviction involved dishonesty or false statement, whether felonies or misdemeanors, other than misdemeanor traffic offense. And further stated, provable convictions under 609 (a) include convictions from any jurisdiction, federal or state. Also under Rule 609 (a) allows you impeach a witness if they have committed any crime involving dishonesty (i.e. larceny-by-trick, embezzlement, fraud, etc.) then the prior conviction is admissible under every circumstance.

See (Tran. P. 137, line 5-28, p. 138, line 10-28).

ARGUMENT VII

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GIVING THE APPEARANCE OF BIAS IN FAVOR OF THE PROSECUTION, PARTICULARLY DURING PATTON'S CROSS EXAMINATION ISODORE NEWSOM AND PRICILLA NEWSOM

The Trial Court erred by giving the appearance of biasness in favor of the prosecution, particularly during his cross examination of Isodore Newsom and Pricilla Newsom. In *Thompson v. State, 468 So. 2d 852, 854 (Miss. 1995),* the court said: [" it is a matter of common knowledge that jurors... are very susceptible to the influence of the judge... jurors watch his conduct, and give attention to his language, that they may, if possible, ascertain his leaning to one side or the other, which, if known, often largely influence their verdict. He cannot be too careful and guarded in language and conduct in the presence of the jury, to avoid prejudice to either party.]

ŧ

<u>ARGUMENT VIII</u>

WHETHER THE JURY VERDICT FINDING PATTON GUILTY WAS AGAINST THE OVERWHELMING WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE

Patton argues the jury verdict finding him guilty was against the overwhelming weight of the evidence. In Cromeans v. State, 261 So.2d 453 (Miss. 1972); Marr v. State, 248 Miss. 281, 159 So 2d 167 (1963); and Freeman v. State, supra [228 Miss. 687, 89 So.2d 716 (1956)]. The Court has stated in per part: "we have further said that we will not set aside a guilty verdict, absent other error, unless it is clearly a result of prejudice, bias or fraud, or is manifestly against the weight of credible evidence." The District Attorney presented to a grand jury is riddled and tainted with fraud, misrepresentations and omissions, further it is unclear to Patton how a grand jury returned an indictment for him trying to sale a "Crimson" trailer when every shred of the states very own evidence was for a "Redman" which is in total contradiction to each other, which indicate fraud was committed upon the court.

£

<u>ARGUMENT IX</u>

PATTON ARGUES THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED DURING JURY INSTRUCTIONS AND VIOLATED PATTON'S FIFTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS

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