IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

EDGAR PATTON

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2008-KP-1699

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JEFFREY A. KLINGFUSS

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.



OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

Issue II.	
	Defendant Chose to Represent Himself and Was Aware
	of the Perils
Issue III.	
	The State Did Not Commit a Discovery Violation or
	Withhold Exculpatory Evidence
Issue IV.	
	This Issue Is Procedurally Barred as Not Supported by
	Argument and Citation to Authority and as Having
	Been Waived
Issue V.	
20044	The trial court did not improperly exclude evidence as
	irrelevant
Issue VI.	
10540 711	The Defendant Was Not Prevented from Eliciting
	Testimony about the Prior Conviction of a Witness 13
Issue VII.	resultiony about the 11101 Conviction of a withess, 15
155uc v 11.	This Issue Is Dropodurelly Roward and Alternatively
	This Issue Is Procedurally Barred and Alternatively without Merit
Issue VIII.	
	There Was Ample Credible Legally Sufficient
	Evidence to Support the Jury Verdict of Guilty
	of False Pretense

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

STATE CASES

Brown v. State, 829 So.2d 93, 103 (Miss. 2002)
Brown v. State, 969 So.2d 855, 860 (Miss.2007)
Conley v. State, 790 So.2d 773, 784 (Miss., 2001)
Croft v. State, 992 So.2d 1151, 1155 (Miss. 2008)
Danner v. State, 748 So.2d 844, 846 (Miss.Ct.App.1999)
Davis v. State, 811 So.2d 346, 350 (Miss.Ct.App.2001)
Evans v. State, 725 So.2d 613, 708 (Miss.1997)
Gleeton v. State, 716 So.2d 1083 (Miss.1998)
Gray v. State, 728 So.2d 36, 75 (Miss.1998)
Johnston v. State, 567 So.2d 237, 238 (Miss.1990)
Kinney v. State, 336 So.2d 493, 496 (Miss.1976)
McFee v. State, 511 So.2d 130, 133 (Miss.1987)
McNeal v. State, 658 So.2d 1345, 1350 (Miss.1995)
MST, Inc. v. Mississippi Chemical Corp., 610 So.2d 299, 304 (Miss. 1992) 6
Neal v. State, 451 So.2d 743, 758 (Miss.1984)
Odom v. State, 94 So. 233, 234 (Miss. 1922)
Rubenstein v. State, 941 So.2d 735, 770 -771 (Miss. 2006)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

EDGAR PATTON

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2008-KP-1699

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Defendant, Edgar Patton was indicted by the Grand Jury of Marion County for False Pretense in violation of *Miss. Code Ann.* § 97-19-39. (Indictment, c.p.4). After a trial by jury, Circuit Judge R.I. Prichard, III, presiding, wherein defendant represented himself, – the jury found defendant guilty. (Verdict, c.p.52). The trial court sentenced defendant to 10 years, 8 suspended, 2 to serve in the custody of the Mississippi Department of Corrections. Further, defendant was ordered to make restitution in the amount of \$800 to the victim, pay fines in Marion County Justice Court of \$717.50 and pay all costs of court. (Order of conviction and sentence, c.p. 81-84).

After denial of post-trial motions this instant appeal was timely noticed. C.p. 111. It

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Succinctly, the State elicited testimony and produced exhibits that defendant did accept \$800 from the victims for the sale of a trailer. St. Ex. 1, 2, 3.

Defendant did not own that trailer, and did not return the money received. Defendant falsely represented that he owned a trailer for sale. Defendant falsely gave information regarding the sale (serial number, description). When in point of fact the trailer belonged to someone else and the serial number was fiction. Tr. 129.

The jury heard the evidence and found defendant guilty.

ARGUMENT

T.

The Indictment Was Legally Sufficient to Put Defendant on Notice as to the Charges Against Him.

Defendant, still representing himself, argues his indictment was defective.

The indictment of defendant charged him with a violation pursuant to Miss. Code Ann.

§ 97-19-39. The applicable statutory provision applicable to this felony indictment is:

Every person, who with intent to cheat or defraud another, shall designedly, by color of any false token or writing, or by another false pretense, obtain the signature of any person to any written instrument, or obtain from any person any money, personal property, or valuable thing, with a value of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) or more, upon conviction thereof shall be guilty of a felony and punished by imprisonment in the State Penitentiary not exceeding ten (10) years, and by a fine not exceeding Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00).

Miss. Code Ann. § 97-19-39(2).

Recently the Mississippi Court of Appeals reviewed and reiterated the law regarding

the legal requirements of an indictment, stating:

¶ 14. [...]

The indictment upon which the defendant is to be tried shall be a plain, concise and definite written statement of the essential facts constituting the offense charged and shall fully notify the defendant of the nature and cause of the accusation. Formal and technical words are not necessary in an indictment, if the offense can be substantially described without them.

An indictment that "reasonably provides the accused with actual notice and ... complies with Rule 7.06 of the Uniform [Rules of] Circuit and County Court" is sufficient to charge the defendant with the crime. Turner v. State, 864 So.2d 288, 293(¶ 22) (Miss.Ct.App.2003); see also McNeal v. State, 658 So.2d 1345, 1350 (Miss.1995).

Issue II.

Defendant Chose to Represent Himself and Was Aware of the Perils.

¶ 5. [...] This Court has held that "[a] waiver of the right to assistance of counsel may occur at any time, before or during the trial, but it must be made with a full understanding of its disadvantages and consequences." Davis v. State, 811 So.2d 346, 350(¶6) (Miss.Ct.App.2001) (citations omitted). Jackson claims that because the trial judge did not adequately warn him of the disadvantages and consequences of self-representation, his waiver was not knowing and intelligent.

Jackson v. State, 1 So.3d 921, 924 -925 (Miss.App. 2008).

Looking to the record the trial court mentions on page 2 and page 12 that defendant is going to represent himself. It also appears this issue had been addressed earlier and often—though not fully recorded in the trial court record now before this court on appeal. It is apparent that defendant was exercising his right to counsel.

Further, it is clear from the record that the trial court, gently, made sure that defendant was not prejudiced by his unfamiliarity with the rules and the law. Tr. 12, 29, 42.

The State would ask that no relief be granted on this allegation of error.

Issue IV.

This Issue Is Procedurally Barred as Not Supported by Argument and Citation to Authority and as Having Been Waived.

The day of trial the judge asked defendant if he was ready to go to trial – defendant replied in the affirmative. Tr. 15.

It is the duty of the movant, when a motion or other pleading is filed, including motions for a new trial, to pursue said motion to hearing and decision by the court. Failure to pursue a pretrial motion to hearing and decision before trial is deemed an abandonment of that motion; however, said motion may be heard after the commencement of trial in the discretion of the court.

This Court has repeatedly held that "it is the responsibility of the movant to obtain a ruling from the court on motions ... and failure to do so constitutes a waiver." Evans v. State, 725 So.2d 613, 708 (Miss.1997) (quoting Johnson v. State, 461 So.2d 1288, 1290 (Miss.1984)). "Issues not brought before the trial court are deemed waived and may not be raised for the first time on appeal." Tate v. State, 912 So.2d 919, 928 (Miss.2005) (citing Wilcher v. State, 479 So.2d 710, 712 (Miss.1985)).

¶ 17. We find no record of a ruling by the trial court on Smith's motion for severance nor any evidence that the motion was noticed for hearing by the defendant. By failing to pursue a hearing or ruling on the motion from the trial court, Smith effectively abandoned the motion and waived this issue for appeal.

Smith v. State, 986 So.2d 290, 296 (Miss. 2008).

The State would assert this issue was waived when not raised at the trial court level. Further, while there is a listing of claimed errors, there is no citation to authority or development of argument of any kind. Further, other than a claim of prejudice there is no showing of how the defense was affected and if it was actual prejudice. *Young v. Guild*, 7

Issue V.

The trial court did not improperly exclude evidence as irrelevant.

At trial defendant sought to elicit testimony from Det. Albert Lee Preston the original investigating officer. The State had, apparently, subpoenaed Preston but decided they did not need his testimony. While defendant asserts he had him on his witness list defendant did not subpoena this witness.

The trial court inquired as to the type of testimony to be elicited from this witness.

Defendant responded and the trial court ruled it was irrelevant. Tr. 158-59.

¶ 15. The standard of review for the admission or exclusion of evidence is abuse of discretion. Brown v. State, 969 So.2d 855, 860 (Miss.2007) (citing Poole v. Avara, 908 So.2d 716, 721 (Miss.2005)). "The relevancy and admissibility of evidence are largely within the discretion of the trial court and reversal may be had only where that discretion has been abused." Johnston v. State, 567 So.2d 237, 238 (Miss.1990) (citing Hentz v. State, 542 So.2d 914, 917 (Miss.1989); Monk v. State, 532 So.2d 592, 599 (Miss.1988)).

Croft v. State, 992 So.2d 1151, 1155 (Miss. 2008).

At trial and from the entire transcript it is claimed by defendant that Preston would have testified that defendant had offered a refund of the money but the victim's refused his offer.

And, two witnesses did testify that defendant did not offer the money back.

"On the principle that the injury is to the state, accused cannot plead that prosecutor has condoned the crime and settled with accused, unless the statute permits such a settlement. It is no defense that the prosecutor has recovered, or could recover, for any loss he has sustained, or that accused has offered to pay for the property obtained, or has paid for it, or that he has offered to return, or has returned, the property obtained, or that the prosecutor has regained possession thereof, or that its loss has been made good to him, or that accused

Issue VI.

The Defendant Was Not Prevented from Eliciting Testimony about the Prior Conviction of a Witness.

Defendant tried to impeach a witness with a prior conviction. Tr. 138. And, if defendant had a reasonable belief of a prior conviction (which he apparently did and still does) he merely would have had to ask the question. But for reasons not apparent from the record defendant did not pursue the question.

Perhaps the conviction was not one that could be used to impeach. Regardless, it was not that he was prevented from impeaching the witness – defendant either did not know how to use a prior conviction to impeach, or chose not to pursue the issue. *Robert v. State*, 821 So.2d 812 (¶ 13)(Miss. 2002).

Such is not error by the State, or the trial court. Consequently no relief should be given on this claim of error.

two witnesses (or any other for that matter).

If this issue were not procedurally barred it would alternatively be without merit in fact and law.

Issue IX.

The Jury Was Properly Instructed.

Lastly, defendant asserts it was error for the court to give an instruction that told the jury that if certain proof was not proved by the State (that defendant obtained \$800) then the jury was do find defendant non guilty. (Instruction 4, c.p. 49). Defendant claims it was instruction #5, but the State believes, based on the language quoted, he is arguing about Instruction #4.

The reviewing courts of this State have oft heard this argument that instructing the jury on finding the defendant not guilty of certain charges is permitted by law.

¶ 174. Russell argues first that defense counsel was ineffective for submitting an instruction, D-17, which states that "if you find that the State has failed to prove any one of the essential elements of the crime of capital murder, you must find the Defendant not guilty of capital murder and you will proceed with your deliberations to decide whether the State has proved beyond a reasonable doubt all the elements of a lesser crime of manslaughter." Russell points out that counsel actually argued the matter the other way around to the jury, urging them to consider manslaughter first. The State points out that we have found that this type of instruction, an "acquit-first" instruction, is not prohibited by the law of this State. Gray v. State, 728 So.2d 36, 75 (Miss.1998).

Russell v. State, 849 So.2d 95 (Miss. 2003).

The jury was properly instructed on the elements to the offense and even instructed on a defense to the crime charged. This was certainly allowed by law, and not prejudicial to defendant. The State would argue such guidance to the jury is beneficial to defendant.

Be that as it may, there was no error in the giving of July 3, 2009.